
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of  

the Standards Committee 

on Tuesday, 19 September 2017, at 2.00 p.m. 

in the Georgian Room, Kendal Town Hall 

 
 

Committee Membership 
 

Councillors 
 

Caroline Airey 

Chris Hogg (Chairman) 

John Holmes 

Pete McSweeney (Vice-Chairman) 

Eric Morrell 

Phil Walker 

Mark Wilson  

 

Parish Members 
 

David Peters 

Peter Smillie   

 

 
 
 
 
Friday, 8 September 2017 
 
Debbie Storr, Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 
 
For all enquiries, please contact:-  

Committee Administrator: Paul Rogers 

 

Telephone: 01539 793497 

e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

2  MINUTES  5 - 8 

 To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting of the Committee held on 18 April 2017 (copy attached). 

 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this 
Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 
 
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as 
any other registrable or other interests. 
 
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of 
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised 
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

4  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public. 

 

5  PROTOCOL ON GOOD PRACTICE IN LICENSING FOR MEMBERS  9 - 26 

 To consider whether to recommend to Council the adoption of a Protocol on 
Good Practice in Licensing for Members. 

 

6  COMPLIMENTS, CUSTOMER FEEDBACK AND COMPLAINTS RECEIVED 
FROM APRIL 2017 TO JULY 2017  

27 - 34 

 To receive an update on the number of complaints and compliments received 
from April 2017 to July 2017. 

 

7  LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN ANNUAL REVIEW 2016-17  35 - 44 

 To receive the Annual Report of the Local Ombudsman for 2016/17.  

8  CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS  45 - 48 

 To consider the report of the Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring 
Officer) with regards to complaints under the Council’s Standards Arrangements 
from 1 April 2017. 

 

9  REGISTER OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY AND OTHER INTERESTS  49 - 52 

 To review the register of disclosable pecuniary and other interests for District 
Council Members and co-optees for the period to September 2017. 

 



10  PARISH REGISTERS  53 - 56 

 To review the register of disclosable pecuniary and other interests for Parish 
Councillors for the period to September 2017. 

 

11  EMPLOYEE REGISTER OF INTERESTS AND GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY  57 - 60 

 To review the register of interests and gifts and hospitality for employees for the 
period September 2016 to September 2017. 

 

12  STANDARDS COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  61 - 62 

 To consider the Committee’s Work Programme.  

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number) 

There are no items in this Part of the Agenda. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



5 
18.04.2017 Standards Committee 
 

 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Standards Committee held in the Georgian 
Room, Kendal Town Hall, on Tuesday, 18 April 2017, at 6.30 p.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

 
Matt Severn (Chairman) 

Pete McSweeney (Vice-Chairman) 

John Holmes 
Eric Morrell 
 

Phil Walker 
Mark Wilson 
 

  
 

Parish Members 

David Peters 
 

Peter Smillie 
 

  
 

Also in attendance was David Tweddle, Independent Person. 
 

Officers 

Inge Booth Senior Committee Services Officer 

Anthea Lowe Solicitor to the Council 

Debbie Storr Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 

 

S/13 MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of 
the meeting of the Committee held on 20 September 2016. 
 

S/14 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations were raised. 
 

S/15 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there are no excluded items on the Agenda. 
 

S/16 COMPLIMENTS, CUSTOMER FEEDBACK AND COMPLAINTS RECEIVED DURING 
2016/2017  
 
The Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) presented an update from the 
Assistant Director Policy and Performance on the number of complaints and compliments 
received during 2016/17.  In the past year, the number of Stage 1 complaints had reduced 
slightly, although there had been a very slight increase in the time taken to respond to all 
complaints due to a number of more complex cases involving more detailed investigation.  
All complaints had, however, been acknowledged within one working day.  The report 
referred to four complaints which had been investigated by the Local Government 
Ombudsman to date, with the annual report expected in July.  Two of these complaints had 
been recorded as “maladministration but no injustice” at pre-report stage, and related to 
planning matters, one of which had an agreed action for the Council to review and update 
its local validation list, which had been done.  The Director of Policy and Resources 
(Monitoring Officer) was pleased to highlight that the number of compliments was rising. 

Page 5

Item No.2



6 
18.04.2017 Standards Committee 
 

 

 
During discussion, the Director of Policy and Resources undertook to seek clarification on 
the result of the investigations of the remaining two Ombudsman cases.  She explained the 
process followed prior to complaints progressing to the Chief Executive and clarified that 
the nine that had reached that stage during 2016/17 related mainly to planning matters.  In 
response to queries raised, she also undertook to ensure that Members were provided with 
a summary of complaints received and information on customer satisfaction with regard to 
responses to complaints. 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) the report be received; and 
 
(2) the recent decisions of the Local Ombudsman be noted. 
 

S/17 REVIEW OF GUIDANCE FOR MEMBERS APPOINTED TO OUTSIDE BODIES  
 
The Solicitor to the Council reported on a recent review of the Guidance for Members 
appointed to Outside Bodies prior to circulation of the amended document to Members at 
the start of the new Council year. 
 
The guidance was intended to explain the types of outside body that Members could be 
appointed to, the different management arrangements that they could adopt, the legal 
responsibilities of Members appointed to outside bodies and any liability or insurance 
issues associated with being a representative on such a body. 
 
The Solicitor to the Council indicated that the updates, shown at Appendix 1 to the report, 
related mainly to changes in officer roles and strengthening of the sections relating to 
shadow directors and the definition of “bias”. 
 
Discussion took place around shadow directors, trustees and liabilities, and to the 
possibility of councillors being dissuaded from taking on these roles.  The importance for 
councillors to be aware of their responsibilities as the Council’s representatives on outside 
bodies, the capacity in which they had been appointed to the organisation, for example 
observer or trustee, and the need for suitable training were raised. 
 
It was suggested that clarification should be included within the guidance on the need for 
Members appointed to charitable trusts to ensure that they were covered by trustee 
indemnity insurance.  In addition, it was suggested that the bullet points within the 
document be numbered for ease of reference. 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) subject to the amendments raised and outlined above being made, the updated 
Guidance for Members appointed to Outside Bodies, as attached at Appendix 2 to the 
report, be noted; and 
 
(2) the updated and amended Guidance as referred to at (1) above, be circulated to 
Members. 
 

Page 6



7 
18.04.2017 Standards Committee 
 

 

S/18 CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS  
 
The Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) reported that, under the 
Council’s Standards Arrangements, she reviewed any complaint received about District or 
Parish/Town Councillors in respect of the Members’ code of conduct and, after consultation 
with the Independent Person, took a decision as to whether it merited formal investigation.  
Members had last been updated in September 2016.  Since that time, whilst there had 
been a small number of enquiries relating to parish matters, no formal complaints had been 
received. 
 
The Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) informed the Committee, 
however, that since writing the report, a formal complaint relating to a parish matter had 
been received, and was being considered through informal resolution.  She advised that 
the Standard’s Committee’s draft Annual Report would be amended to reflect this and, 
once settled, she would provide feedback to the Committee within the next update report. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

S/19 FEEDBACK FROM INDEPENDENT PERSON ON RECENT TRAINING EVENT  
 
The Council’s Independent Person, David Tweddle, reported on a training session that he 
had attended on 30 March 2017.  The half-day workshop had been delivered by Hoey 
Ainscough Associates Limited who were recognised experts in the field of the Local 
Government Standards Framework.  The workshop had provided an opportunity to explore 
the role of the Independent Person in length, to discuss key developments throughout the 
year and to network and share experiences with others. 
 
Most importantly, Mr Tweddle had been able judge how South Lakeland District Council’s 
Standards Arrangements compared with those of other authorities.  He felt satisfied that 
the Authority had good arrangements in place, however, had noted that the subject of a 
complaint should be informed of their right to consult the Independent Person within the 
initial communication. 
 
Mr Tweddle highlighted the fact that, when the Localism Act 2011 had come into force, it 
had been indicated that there would be a review following a five year period in order to 
assess whether the Act was meeting its aims.  Although this review had not yet taken 
place, it was likely that this would happen within the next year or so. 
 
The Chairman thanked Mr Tweddle for his report. 
 
RESOLVED – That the verbal feedback on the recent training event attended by the 
Independent Person be noted. 
 

S/20 REVIEW OF STANDARDS ARRANGEMENTS AND ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17  
 
The Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) reported that the Council had 
been operating under revised Standards Arrangements since June 2012.  It was 
appropriate for the Committee to review the Standards Arrangements on a regular basis 
and this had last been carried out in 2015.  The Director of Policy and Resources 
(Monitoring Officer) was of the opinion that no changes were required at this time. 
 
The Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) also presented the Committee’s 
draft Annual Report for 2016/17, which detailed the work of the Committee and the 
operation of the Council’s Standard Arrangements over the last 12 months. 

Page 7



8 
18.04.2017 Standards Committee 
 

 

 
In presenting the report, the Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) referred 
to amendments required to the draft Annual Report as a result of the formal complaint 
referred to at Minute S/18 above and due to two Ombudsman cases now having been 
upheld since September 2016 and outlined at Minute S/16 above.  She advised that the 
amendments to the Annual Report would be finalised with the Chairman of the Committee. 
 
Attention was drawn to a typographical error on Page 6 of the Annual Report. 
 
RESOLVED - That 
 
(1) the Council’s existing Standards Arrangements be noted and confirmed; and 
 
(2) subject to the amendments raised and outlined above being made, the Standard 
Committee’s draft Annual Report 2016/17 be approved for referral to full Council. 
 

S/21 STANDARDS COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) presented the Standard 
Committee’s Work Programme for 2017/18 which, she advised, she would continue to 
review throughout the year. 
 
In consideration of the Programme, it was raised that the Standards Committee was not a 
diverse group gender-wise.  Although it was acknowledged that there was not a 
requirement for committees to be gender balanced, Members undertook to pass on this 
comment to their respective group leaders. 
 
Discussion took place with regard to what topics were covered in Members’ Induction 
Training and particularly with regard to the Standards Committee’s role in relation to 
training on the Code of Conduct.  The Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 
informed Members that the programme of training was developed by a cross party Member 
Support Steering Group and explained the types of training available, which covered a wide 
range of areas, including mandatory sessions relating to Planning, Licensing and the Code 
of Conduct, as well as training for ward members.  She undertook to review the matter with 
regard to the role of the Standards Committee in the development of Members’ Induction 
Training.  Members were keen to have sight of a complete list of what was covered. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Standards Committee’s Work Programme for 2017/18 be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 7.15 p.m. 

Page 8



1 
 

South Lakeland District Council 

Standards Committee  

19 September 2017 

Licensing Committee and 

Licensing Regulatory Committee 

7 November 2017  

PROTOCOL ON GOOD PRACTICE IN LICENSING 
FOR MEMBERS  

 

PORTFOLIO: Councillor Matt Severn – Culture, Media and Leisure 
Portfolio Holder  

REPORT FROM: Simon Rowley  –  Assistant Director, Neighbourhood 
Services  

REPORT AUTHOR: Hardeep Burnley – Principal Food, Licensing and Safety 
Officer  

WARDS: All  

FORWARD PLAN: Not applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 That Members agree to recommend to Full Council that the Protocol on Good 
Practice in Licensing for Members as set out in the report is adopted, thereby 
complying with best practice.  This will assist the Council in making robust licensing 
decisions and reduce the risk of successful legal challenge in courts or before the 
Local Government Ombudsman.  

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that Standards Committee, Licensing Committee and 
Licensing Regulatory Committee:- 

(1) note the contents of the report; and 

(2) recommend to Full Council for approval the draft Protocol on Good 
Practice in Licensing as attached at Appendix 1 of this report. 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 It is widely known that in matters of planning local authorities are required to produce 
a code of conduct which guides Members on making sound, fair and impartial 
planning decisions.  There is no such requirement under the Licensing Act 2003 or 
the Gambling Act 2005. 

Page 9

Item No.5



2 
 

3.2 In August 2007 the Local Authority Coordinators of Regulatory Services (LACORS) 
produced a handbook for councillors on matters relating to the Licensing Act 2003, 
however since this date there have been significant changes to the Act and the 
document has not been updated to reflect these changes.  

3.3 The role of the Licensing Authority is to give a clear focus to licensees and 
applicants, on the promotion of the four statutory objectives which must be 
addressed when licensing functions are undertaken.  

3.4 The legislation therefore allows protection to the public and local residents from 
crime, anti-social behaviour and noise nuisance caused by irresponsible licensed 
premises.  However the licensing framework also recognises the important role which 
pubs and other licensed premises play in our local communities by minimising the 
regulatory burden on businesses, encouraging innovation and supporting responsible 
premises.  

3.5 The legislation provides a regulatory framework for alcohol which reflects the needs 
of local communities and empowers local authorities to make and enforce decisions 
about the most appropriate licensing strategies for their local area.  

3.6 It is important that the Council should make decisions about licensing openly, 
impartially, with sound judgement and for justifiable reasons.  The process should 
leave no grounds for suggesting, with any justification, that a decision has been 
partial, biased or ill founded.   For this reason the draft protocol in Appendix 1 has 
been devised.  

3.7 The document attached to this report as Appendix 1 is suggested as the South 
Lakeland District Council Protocol on Good Practice on Licensing for Members.  
Members are asked to give consideration to this document.  If approved, the Protocol 
will be subject to further review in light of any update in legislation or best practice.  
Any updated document will be reviewed by the Licensing Committee, Licensing 
Regulatory Committee and Standards Committee with any consequent changes to 
be recommended to Full Council.  

3.8 Provisions are set out in section 4.1 and 4.2 of the draft Protocol which if approved 
would enable a member who has:-  

(a) due to ward activities or otherwise may have had to declare bias and pre-
determination; or 

 (b) a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest:-  

 To be able to register under the Public Participation Scheme, speak on an agenda 
item but then leave the room during the remainder of the discussion.  

3.9 It is a criminal offence for a member to fail to appropriately register a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest (DPI) or to speak and vote where they have a DPI unless they 
have obtained a dispensation.  The Council’s constitution also requires that if a 
Member has a DPI in any matter to be considered, or being considered, at the 
meeting, then the Member should declare that interest to the meeting and should 
leave the room whilst any discussion or vote takes place.  

3.10 If a dispensation has been granted to a Member in relation to a DPI then subject to 
the terms of the dispensation the Member may be relieved from above restrictions 
but will still be required to declare the interest to the meeting.   

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 Although there has not been any formal consultation on the Protocol, it has been 
discussed with the chair of the Licensing Committee and Licensing Regulatory 
Committee.    

Page 10



3 
 

4.2 The draft is being submitted to the Standards Committee and Licensing Committees 
for any comments they may have prior to referral to Full Council.  

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 The alternative is not to have a Protocol on Good Practice in Licensing for Members.  
This is not recommended as there is no recognised published guidance for members 
considering Licensing matters.   

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 The proposals in this report are relevant to the following Council Values:- 

 (i) Excellence: Seeking continuous improvement in what we do, ensuring that 
our actions address the needs of South Lakeland; and  

 (ii) Open and Transparent: Being courteous, efficient and transparent in our 
dealings with the public.   

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 The recommendations in this report do not have any financial implications, as any 
training cost are met from existing budgets.  

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 The recommendations in this report do not have any staffing implications.   

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 Whilst the adoption of Protocol on good practice on Licensing for Members is not a 
statutory requirement, the recommendations in this report should assist the Council 
in establishing best practice and minimising:- 

 (i)  the risk of legal challenge to its licensing decisions;  

 (ii) the risk of an adverse finding form the Local Government Ombudsman;  

 (iii) the number of the Council’s decisions which are overturned on appeal; and  

 (iv) the risk of a cost award being made against the Council by a Magistrates in 
respect of licensing decision.  

7.3.2 The Localism Act 2011 sets out criteria which can be applied in considering 
dispensation and the following are relevant in this case:  

 (1) That it is considered that the granting of the dispensation is in the interest of the 
persons living in the authority’s area; or 

 (2) That it is considered that it is otherwise appropriate to grant a dispensation.   

7.3.3 Dispensations cannot be given for Members who are affected by bias and pre-
determination.  The proposals set out in this report if approved will mean that there is 
similar treatment for such member in circumstances in which they wish to use the 
Public Participation scheme applicable to Licensing Committee. 

Page 11



4 
 

7.4 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental  

Have you completed and Health, Social, 
Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If yes, please confirm that it is attached 
to the report in the appendices. 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons. 

No such impact has been carried out as 
this proposal is considered to have a 
neutral impact.  

 

7.5 Equality and Diversity  

Have you completed an Equality Impact 
Analysis? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If yes, please confirm that it is attached 
to the report in the appendices. 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons. 

No such impact has been carried out as 
this proposal is considered to have a 
neutral impact. 

 

7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Failure of Members and 
Officers to comply with the 
Protocol of Good Practice 
for Members on Licensing 
Matters.  

1. Potential legal 
challenge to licensing 
decisions  

1. Regular Member 
training  

2. Potential finding of 
maladministration by the 
Local Government 
Ombudsman  

2. Members, Officers and 
the Public can make a 
complaint to the 
Monitoring Officer in the 
event of any failure to 
comply with the Protocol 
of Good Practice for 
Members on Licensing 
Matters which results in a 
breach of Members’ Code 
of Conduct.  

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author  - Hardeep Burnley, Principal Food, Safety and Licensing Officer, Tel: 01539-
793473, email: hardeep.burnley@southlakeland.gov.uk  

 

Page 12

mailto:hardeep.burnley@southlakeland.gov.uk


5 
 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix No.  

1 Protocol on Good Practice for Members on Licensing Matters  

2 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact form  

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

Name of Background 
document 

Where it is available (examples as shown) 

LACORS Licensing Act 2003 
Councillors Handbook  

http://www.ihsti.com/lacors/upload/15991.pdf 

 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio Holder Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

24/08/2017 N/a 24/08/2017 N/a N/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

 07/11/2017 19/12/2017 24/08/2017 24/08/2017 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Leader 

 

Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

  

24/08/2017 N/a N/a   

 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



                                                                                                                                                                                 APPENDIX 1 

Page 1 of 8 
 

PROTOCOL ON GOOD PRACTICE IN LICENSING FOR MEMBERS  DEALING WITH 

LICENSING ISSUES  

1.0 INTRODUCTION  

1.1 The Licensing Act 2003 and the Gambling Act 2005 have put local authorities firmly at 
the centre of decision making upon licensing for regulated entertainment, the provision 
of alcohol, late night refreshment and the Licensing of Gambling Establishments and 
Small Lotteries. 
 

1.2 There are two main aims of this protocol.  The first is to provide guidance to, and  
enable, councillors to represent their constituents, whether they be residents, local 
businesses etc. by acting as ‘interested parties’ at licensing hearings.  The second aim is 
to provide guidance to those Members who are members of the Licensing & Licensing 
Regulatory Committee (and their sub-committees); by following this protocol, Members 
will help to avoid accusations of pre-determination, bias or maladministration.   

 

1.3 The role of Elected Members as part of the Licensing Committee will involve balancing 
the multiple needs and interests of the local community, whilst prioritising the four 
Licensing Objectives of the Licensing Act 2003 and the three objectives of the Gambling 
Act 2005.  In doing so the Elected Member must maintain his/her impartiality and, as 
public perception of probity is critical, his/her appearance of impartiality too, during the 
decision making process.  This protocol is intended to ensure that this is achieved.  

 

1.4 This protocol is part of the Council’s Constitution and all members and officers are 
expected to comply strictly with its provisions.  Any breach of the protocol will be 
referred to the Monitoring Officer.  If the breach is also a breach of the Code of Conduct 
for Members the matter will be dealt with accordingly.  

 

1.5 This protocol is in addition to and takes account of the ethical framework introduced by 
the Local Government Act 2000 (as amended).  

 

1.6 This protocol can be changed at any time by resolution of Council.  
 

2.0 GENERAL ROLE AND CONDUCT OF COUNCILLORS  

 
2.1 Councillors and Officers  have different but complimentary roles.  Both serve the public 

but Councillors are responsible to the electorate, whilst officers are responsible to the 
Council as a whole.  The Council’s reputation as a successful Licensing Authority can 
only be based upon a mutual trust between councillors and officers and understanding 
of each other’s positions.  This relationship, and the trust which underpins it, must 
never be abused or compromised.  

 
2.2 Legislation emphasises the overriding requirement that the public are entitled to expect 

the highest standards of conduct and probity by all persons holding public office and in 
particular that when dealing with licensing matters only issues relating to the licensing 

Page 15



                                                                                                                                                                                 APPENDIX 1 

Page 2 of 8 
 

objectives are taken into account and when dealing with gambling matters only issues 
relating to the gambling objectives are taken into account.  There are statutory 
provisions and codes that set standards which must be followed if the public perception 
of the integrity of public service is to be maintained and improved.  

 
2.3 Members must, at all times, comply with the provisions of the Code of Conduct for 

Members which has been adopted by the Council and sets out the required standards 
of conduct for councillors.  The Code not only covers issues central to the preservation 
of an ethical approach to council business but also appropriate relationships with other 
members, staff and the public which will impact on the way in which members 
participate in the licensing process.  Of particular relevance to councillors serving on the 
Licensing Committee and Panels is the provision which reads:  

 
“Selflessness: Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest”  
 
2.4 Officers involved in the processing and determination of licensing matters must act in 

accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct for Employees.  
 
2.5 Despite the provision of the Code of Conduct for Members and the Code of Conduct for 

Employees, Members and officers involved in licensing matters should not accept any 
gifts or hospitality.  If, however, a degree of hospitality is unavoidable it should be 
ensured that such hospitality is minimal and its receipt is declared as soon as possible.  
Members and officers should notify the Monitoring Officer of such hospitality.  In all 
cases details must be entered in:  

  

 The Members’ Register of Interest; or  

 The Officers’ Register of Gifts and Hospitality  
 
2.6 Officers must always act impartially.  
 
2.7 The Council is committed to a culture of continuous improvement in all of its services 

and will ensure that all Officers and Members involved in the licensing process receive 
proper training/development to ensure that they are able to undertake their respective 
roles.  

 
2.8 Members will be required to attend initial training/development sessions when first 

serving on the Licensing Committee/Licensing Regulatory Committee (normally within 
three months of appointment).  Refresher training will be offered to members every 
year, and members will be required to attend.  Members who do not participate in 
training will be excluded from serving on Licensing Panels determining licensing 
applications and other associated matters until the requirement has been met.  If a 
Member fails to undertake any of the mandatory training within 12 months from the 
date on which it fell due, they will be considered to have resigned their position on the 
Licensing Committee (and Licensing Regulatory Committee) and the appropriate Group 
Leader will be notified that a vacant post requires filling. 

 

Page 16



                                                                                                                                                                                 APPENDIX 1 

Page 3 of 8 
 

2.9 Training will be delivered in a variety of ways so as to make it as accessible as possible 
for members.  A combination of e-learning modules, one-to-one sessions and group 
sessions will be used.  In addition to on-going training/development sessions, Members 
will be updated regularly on changes to legislation, procedures and policies.  

 
2.10  Training/development courses will continue to be provided from time to time to 

ensure that Members maintain the necessary skills and expertise to fulfil the licensing 
functions to the best of their ability and in accordance with all relevant requirements.  

 
2.11 Members of the Licensing Committee may be asked to serve on a Panel and will be 

required to attend all training/development sessions as detailed above.  
 

3.0 REGISTRATION AND DECLARATION OF INTEREST  

 
3.1 Members and Officers undertaking the Council’s licensing functions have a duty to act 

fairly and without bias at all times and to be seen to be so doing.   All steps should 
therefore be taken to ensure that their actions do not infer impropriety of any sort.  

 
3.2 The Localism Act 2011 and the Code of Conduct for Members place requirements on 

Members about the registration and declaration of their interests and the 
consequences for the member’s participation in the consideration of an issue, in the list 
of those interests.  These requirements must be followed scrupulously and members 
should review their situation regularly.  Guidance on the registration and declaration of 
interests may be sought from the Council’s Monitoring Officer, although ultimate 
responsibility for fulfilling the requirements rests individually with each member.  

 
3.3 A Register of Members’ Interests is maintained by the Monitoring Officer and is 

available for public inspection and on the Council’s website.  A Member must provide 
the Monitoring Officer with written details of any disclosable pecuniary interests within 
28 days of election or appointment to office.  Any changes to those interests must be 
similarly notified within 28 days of the Member becoming aware of such changes.  

 
3.4 The Localism Act 2011 requires  that, unless a dispensation has been granted, a 

Member who has declared a disclosable pecuniary interest should not participate in any 
discussion or vote of the matter at a meeting. The Council’s constitution also requires 
members to leave the room when such a matter is under discussion.  

 
3.5 Members with a disclosable pecuniary interest may utilise any general dispensation 

given to members to speak in a public participation item, but will be required to leave 
the meeting for the remainder of the agenda item.    

 

4.0 LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEES – BIAS AND PREDETERMINATION   

 
4.1  Introduction  
 

Page 17



                                                                                                                                                                                 APPENDIX 1 

Page 4 of 8 
 

4.1.1 Bias has been defined as “an attitude of mind which prevents the decision-maker 
from making an objective determination of the issues that he/she has to resolve”.  
The important concept as regards bias is that there is no need for proof of actual or 
potential bias for there to be ‘procedural impropriety’ shown.  It is sufficient that 
there is an appearance of bias.  Accordingly, the test for bias is ‘whether a fair-
minded and informed observer, having considered the facts, would conclude that 
there was a real possibility of bias’.  

 
4.1.2 Further, where the decision to be made is quasi-judicial, as at Licensing Sub-

Committee, the key issue to ensure the legality of the decision is to consider 
whether there may be a “public perception of a probability of unconscious bias”.  
This brings into consideration the previous dealings of Members of the Licensing 
Sub-Committee and views expressed by them.  Members should therefore avoid 
participating as a Member of Licensing Sub-Committee where previous voting or 
statements of belief may alter that “objective impression conveyed”.  

 
4.1.3 ‘Bias’ also includes the situation where it is felt the decision-maker has pre-

determined the case upon his/her own prejudices.  In the local government context, 
the most obvious example of pre-determination is where the impression is clearly 
given to persons (such as member of public or a lobbyist) beyond conveying a mere 
pre-disposition, that ‘the Member or authority will approach the matter with a 
closed mind and without impartial consideration of all relevant issues.  In short, to 
avoid a claim of pre-determination, you must be able to say with honesty that your 
mind is open and that you will determine the matter on the evidence, regardless of 
any pre-disposition that you may have conveyed.  

 
4.1.4 To help avoid accusation of pre-determination and ensure that Ward Members are 

free to represent their constituents as ‘interested parties’, Ward Members will not 
sit on Licensing Sub-Committee where that Sub-Committee is considering an 
application in that member’s ward.   

 
4.2 Difference between the disclosable pecuniary interests provisions of the Code of 
Conduct, and Bias at Common Law 
 
4.2.1 Bias at common law and disclosable pecuniary interests under the South Lakeland 

District Council Code of Conduct for Members are related but do differ as concepts 
and in their effect.  Although the wording and apparent objectives are similar, the 
test for common law bias has a lower threshold.  Bias at common law includes those 
areas where the potential Licensing Sub-Committee member has raised a real danger 
of a perception that s/he has prevented him or herself from being able to make an 
impartial determination of the issues.  This is also known as fettering one’s 
discretion.  Interests under the Code of Conduct, however, only concern themselves 
with the definition of a disclosable pecuniary interest as prescribed by legislation, 
and any other registrable interests that the Council has said should be declared.  

 
4.2.2 In terms of effects, a Member who has a disclosable pecuniary interest may not, 

unless they have a dispensation, take part in the Licensing Sub-Committee or attend 

Page 18



                                                                                                                                                                                 APPENDIX 1 

Page 5 of 8 
 

the hearing at all.  Whereas, a Member who has fettered his/her discretion through 
common-law bias may not sit as part of the Licensing Sub-Committee but may act on 
behalf of (or as) an ‘interested party’.  

 

5.0 APPLICATIONS SUBMITTED BY THE LOCAL AUTHORITY  

 
5.1 The Council could apply for their own Premises Licences.  Such applications must be, 

and be seen to be, dealt with fairly.  During such an application process it is therefore 
important to be aware of any potential appearance of bias.  

 
 
 

6.0 LOBBYING OF/BY COUNCILLORS  

 
6.1 Local democracy: The Licensing Act 2003 and The Gambling Act 2005 set out the 

grounds for making representations on licence applications and limits the parties which 
may make such representations.  It should be borne in mind that one of the key aims of 
the Licensing Act 2003 and the Gambling Act 2005 is to localise decision making or 
‘democratise’ the process and members are therefore legitimately concerned with their 
locality and the needs/wishes of its constituents, including both the needs for 
entertainment and employment, as well as the undesirability of crime and public 
nuisance.  Local councillors can either sit as part of the Licensing Committee/Sub-
Committee or can represent the interests of their constituents by acting as ‘interested 
parties’, as long as they do not have any disclosable pecuniary interest in the matter.  

 
6.2 The Code of Conduct: If the matter to be decided at a licensing hearing relates to the 

Member’s membership of a lobby or campaign group, an interest should be declared in 
line with the principles detailed within South Lakeland District Council Code of Conduct.  
This might, for example, include a situation where the Member is a part of campaign 
group which promotes rural pubs and the licence application requires a licence for such 
a premises.  Whilst the Code of Conduct does not require the Member to withdraw 
from a meeting unless there is also a disclosable pecuniary interest, so as to avoid 
perceptions of bias in such a situation the Member shall not sit on the Sub-Committee 
determining the application.  However, this would not preclude the Member attending 
the meeting either as the licence applicant, or being/representing an ‘interested party’.   

 
6.3 As stated earlier in this Protocol , unless a Member has a dispensation, if they have a 

disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter then they  must not be present in the meeting 
in any form.  Should s/he be the licence applicant or be/represent an ‘interested party’ 
then an agent should be utilised at the meeting instead, to present the member’s view.  

 
6.4 It should be noted that regulatory matters such as licensing are particularly sensitive.  

Members should adopt a particularly cautious approach to such matters.  
 

Page 19



                                                                                                                                                                                 APPENDIX 1 

Page 6 of 8 
 

6.5 Appearance of bias: Whilst lobbying of members is legitimate and certain members may 
take representations to the Licensing Committee/Sub-Committee on behalf of 
‘interested parties’, it is crucial for the Licensing Authority and its Committee/Sub-
Committee to ensure that there is neither actual nor the appearance of bias in its 
decision making.  

 
6.6 To avoid an appearance of bias:  

 No Member sitting on the Licensing Sub-Committee can represent one of the 
interested parties or the applicant.  If s/he wishes to do so s/he must excuse 
him/herself from membership of the Sub-Committee which is considering the 
application and address the Sub-Committee as an ‘interested party’ or as the 
applicant’s representative/witness.  

 If a Member who sits on the Licensing Sub-Committee is approached by persons 
wishing to lobby him/her as regards to the licence application then that Member 
must politely explain that they cannot discuss the matter and refer the lobbyist 
to his/her Ward Member or the Licensing Officer who can explain the process of 
decision making.  If the Member who sits on the Licensing Sub-Committee 
wishes to represent them then s/he will need to excuse him/herself from the 
Licensing Sub-Committee.  

 Political group meetings should never be used to decide how any members on 
the Licensing Sub-Committee should vote.  The view of the Ombudsman is that 
using political whips in this manner may well amount to findings of 
maladministration.  

 Councillors must not be members of the Licensing Committee/Sub-Committee if 
they are involved in campaigning in respect of the particular application being 
considered.  

 Other members (i.e. those which do not sit on the Licensing Sub-Committee) 
need to be careful when discussing issues relating to matters which may come 
before the Licensing Sub-Committee members as this can easily be viewed as 
bias/pressure and may well open that Sub-Committee Member to accusations of 
such.  

 Members must not pressurise Licensing Officers to make any particular decisions 
or recommendations as regards applications (such as the ability to decide 
whether a representation is frivolous or vexatious).  This is also reflected in the 
Member and Officer Protocol contained within the Council’s Constitution.   

 
6.7 It should be noted that a Member for a ward, which would be directly affected by the 

application, is most at risk of being accused of bias.  Such members are also most likely 
to be put under pressure to represent local ‘interested parties’ (i.e. 
objectors/supporters) or indeed ‘responsible authorities’ as regards a licence 
application.  It is for this reason that, whilst there are no statutory requirements for 
ward members to excuse themselves from such a licence application, those whose ward 
is likely to be affected by the application will not sit on the Licensing Sub-Committee 
considering the application but s/he may wish to act as/or represent an ‘interested 
party’.   

 

Page 20



                                                                                                                                                                                 APPENDIX 1 

Page 7 of 8 
 

7.0 PRE-APPLICATION/PRE-DECISION DISCUSSIONS  

 
7.1 Discussions between the licence applicant and the Licensing Authority prior to the 

submission of an application (or prior to a decision being made) are often helpful to 
both parties.  For example, a premises licence applicant may ask for advice on how to 
complete an ‘operating schedule’.  However,  discussions with a member of the 
licensing committee  can often be viewed by objectors as a form of lobbying and the 
elected member must ensure that they do NOT take part in any pre-application/pre-
decision discussions and that applicants are referred to the Licensing Officer.   

 

8.0 ROLE OF THE LICENSING OFFICER  

 
8.1 Licensing Officers have no ability under the Gambling Act 2005 to make representations 

or to be party to the hearing.  This is different for the Licensing Act 2003 as the 
Licensing Officer or the members of the licensing team can act as a responsible 
authority on behalf of the Licensing Authority.  If this happens segregation needs to 
take place between the two roles and for this process to be transparent.  

 
There is no legal provision for Licensing Officers to make recommendations to the 
Licensing Sub-Committee in terms of the outcome of the Committee hearing as is seen 
in planning cases.  However, a summary report of the application, the representations,  
and the Officer’s comments as to how these relate to the Licensing Act 2003, the 
Gambling Act 2005 and the Guidance and the local Licensing Policy Statement and/or 
Gambling Statement of Principles, may be provided.  

 

9.0 DECISION MAKING   

 
9.1 Reasons for decisions made must be clearly documented so that those affected can 

understand why the decision was reached.  It is critical that such reasons demonstrate 
that the decision has been made according to the Licensing Objectives of the Licensing 
Act 2003 and The Gambling Act 2005 as well as the Licensing Authority’s Licensing 
Policy Statement and Gambling Statement of Principles.  Whilst the Government’s 
Guidance accompanying the Licensing Act 2003 indicates some other factors which may 
influence decisions (e.g. live music/cultural considerations) these will always be 
subservient to the Licensing Objectives and the Licensing Policy Statement and 
Statement of Principles.   

 

10.0 SITE VISITS  

 
10.1  A Member of the Licensing Sub-Committee appointed to consider a licensing 

application may request a site visit.  A request must be in writing and state the reasons 
for requesting a site visit which must be one of the following:  
 

Page 21



                                                                                                                                                                                 APPENDIX 1 

Page 8 of 8 
 

 A site visit would assist the Licensing Sub-Committee to assess the impact that 
the premises might have on premises of interested parties and the submitted 
plans are not capable of doing this;  

 A site visit would enable the Sub-Committee to assess the internal layout of 
premises and the submitted plans are not capable of doing this; and  

 There are other exceptional circumstances which, following consultation with 
the Licensing Officer, it is considered appropriate to undertake a visit.   

 
10.2  On the request of a Sub-Committee Member the Licensing Officer will decide whether 

or not to hold a site visit after consultation with the other two Sub-Committee 
members.   

 
10.3  When a site visit is to be undertaken they shall be conducted in the following way  

 

 The Licensing Officer will, where necessary, make arrangements for the 
inspection of the premises with the applicant;  

 The visit will take place after the meeting has opened.  

 The site visit will be chaired by the Sub-Committee chair, but it will not be a 
formal meeting; 

 Licensing Officers will attend to advise and answer questions; 

 Upon arrival at the site, members will receive an introductory briefing from the 
Licensing Officer about the site, the proposal and the reason for the visit;  

 Members will view the application and the submitted plans;  

 On site discussions will relate solely to the purpose of the inspection.  Formal 
consideration of all the issues relevant to the application takes place at the Sub-
Committee hearing;  

 No communication will take place between members and any other parties save 
for the Licensing Officer.  There will be no discussions on the merits or otherwise 
of the application; and  

 Members who have not been able to attend the site visit will not be able to 
participate in the Sub-Committee hearing, unless they are familiar with the site.  

 
 
 

Page 22



                                                                                                                                      APPENDIX 2 

 South Lakeland District Council 

Health, Social, Economic & Environmental Impact Guidance & Proforma 
 

Project, policy or programme: Protocol on Good Practice in Licensing for Members  

Health Impacts Potential Impacts 

Positive No 
impact 

Negative Not 
sure 

Comments Recommendations 

Please tick the appropriate box   

Environmental Conditions 
Air quality 

 

      

Water quality and 
pollution 

 

      

Built environment 

 

    The protocol, will 
provide a clear and 
transparent way of 
applying the policy 
and therefore a clear 
way of achieving the 
licensing objectives.  

 

Natural environment 
and biodiversity 

 

      

Energy 
consumption/efficiency 

 

      

Noise 

 

    The protocol, will 
provide a clear and 
transparent way of 
applying the policy 
and therefore a clear 
way of achieving the 
licensing objectives. 

 

Transport 

 

      

Recycling 

 

      

Food production 

 

      

Social and Economic Factors 
Employment 

 

      

Income 

 

      

Poverty 

 

      

Education, skills and 
training 

      

Page 23



                                                                                                                                      APPENDIX 2 

Project, policy or programme: Protocol on Good Practice in Licensing for Members  

Health Impacts Potential Impacts 

Positive No 
impact 

Negative Not 
sure 

Comments Recommendations 

Please tick the appropriate box   
 

Housing 

 

      

Crime 

 

    The protocol, will 
provide a clear and 
transparent way of 
applying the policy 
and therefore a clear 
way of achieving the 
licensing objectives. 

 

Work environment 

 

    The protocol, will 
provide a clear and 
transparent way of 
applying the policy 
and therefore a clear 
way of achieving the 
licensing objectives. 

 

Factors that impact a person’s ability to improve their own health and wellbeing 
Nutrition and diet 

 

      

Physical activity 

 

      

Alcohol 

 

    The protocol, will 
provide a clear and 
transparent way of 
applying the policy 
and therefore a clear 
way of achieving the 
licensing objectives. 

 

Drugs 

 

      

Risk taking behaviour 

 

      

Smoking 

 

      

Loneliness and 
isolation 

 

      

Access to services, spaces or social opportunities that impact health 
Communication 
methods 

 

      

Active travel 

 

      

Access to leisure 

 

      

Access to culture       

Page 24



                                                                                                                                      APPENDIX 2 

Project, policy or programme: Protocol on Good Practice in Licensing for Members  

Health Impacts Potential Impacts 

Positive No 
impact 

Negative Not 
sure 

Comments Recommendations 

Please tick the appropriate box   
 

Access to green 
spaces 

 

      

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

Standards Committee 

19 September 2017 

Report on Compliments, Customer Feedback and 
Complaints received from April 2017 to July 2017 

PORTFOLIO: Councillor Jonathan Brook – Housing and Innovation 
Portfolio Holder  

REPORT FROM: Simon McVey – Assistant Director Performance and 
Innovation 

REPORT AUTHOR: Caroline Metcalfe – Contact Centre Manager 

WARDS: All 

KEY DECISION NO: not applicable 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 Feedback is very important to help us better understand our customers' needs 
and concerns and can help identify possible avenues of service improvement. 
This report presents an update to Members on the number of complaints and 
compliments received to date during 2017/2018. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that:- 

a) the report be received, and 

b) complaints and compliments are reported to the Committee annually.  

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 In our drive to improve our customer service, complaints data has been 
monitored for a number of years. All complaints and compliments are 
recorded and managed by the customer services team. 

3.2 Previous reports on this subject have generally shown a decrease in the 
number of complaints being received. This trend has continued during the first 
four months of 2017/2018 which shows the lowest number of Q1 complaints 
recorded. This is shown in the data attached at Appendix 1. 

3.3 During 2017/18 there have been 27 complaints received compared to 40 in 
the equivalent period in the previous year. The reasons for complaints are 
many and varied and there is no underlying trend. However compared to the 
annual number of customer interactions this is a very small percentage.  

Page 27

Item No.6



 

 

3.4 This report is showing that the average time taken to respond to all complaints 
is currently 6.2 working days (previous years have been 6.6, 7, 5, 7, 12 and 
15 working days) and 45 of the 27 complaints (81.48%) were answered within 
the 10 working day target. 

3.5 The 5 complaints falling outside the target are more complex cases involving 
more detailed investigation and on some occasions a site visit. All complaints 
were acknowledged in 1 working day. 

3.6 The simplified complaints process is helping to reduce the number of 
complaints progressing to the Chief Executive with 3 reaching this stage so 
far this year.  

3.7 Appendix 2 shows a more detailed breakdown of the stage 1 complaints by 
department and also by complaint category. This data is useful to identify 
trends and assist with service improvements. The highest number of 
complaints continues to be in relation to council policies (often related to 
planning) rather than the quality of service. Neighbourhood Services received 
the highest number of complaints which is indicative of the large number of 
public interactions but the department also receives the highest number of 
compliments. 

3.8 There have been 20 compliments compared to 18 which were received at the 
equivalent time last year. These are shown at Appendix 3. 

3.9 To put these figures in context it is estimated that over the same period there 
have been in excess of 550,000 customer interactions. 

3.10 This report covers the first four months of the year and continues to show a 
downward trend in the very low number of complaints and over 80% being 
responded to within the target number of days. Standards Committee are 
asked to consider whether there is ongoing value in receiving this interim 
report or whether the annual summary received at the April meeting will 
provide sufficient information. . 

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 None.  

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 There are no alternative options – the report is to note. 

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 Links to the Council’s priorities in relation to customer satisfaction. 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 Not applicable. 

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 Not applicable. 

Page 28



 

 

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 Not applicable. 

7.4 Social, Economic and Environmental 

Have you completed and Health, 
Social, Economic and Environmental 
Impact Assessment? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If yes, please confirm that it is 
attached to the report in the 
appendices. 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons. 

Impact Assessment not required. Data 
gathered will help inform service 
improvements.  

 

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

Have you completed an Equality 
Impact Analysis? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If yes, please confirm that it is 
attached to the report in the 
appendices. 

Yes ☐ No ☐ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons. 

Not required for this report but an 
Equalities Impact Assessment was 
completed for the complaints policy 
and customer access strategy. 

7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Reputational as a result 
of complaints 

Reputation of the 
council is diminished 

Regular review of 
complaints policy and 
proactive monitoring of 
complaints.  

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author – c.metcalfe@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix No.  

1  Complaints Data  1 April 2017 – 31 July 2017 

2 Complaints Data  1 April 2017 – 31 July 2017 

3 Compliments Data  1 April 2017 – 31 July 2017 

Page 29



 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

Previous Reports to Standards Committee 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

25/08/2017 25/08/2017 25/08/2017 31/08/2017 n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Standards 
Committee 

Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 19/09/2017 n/a 25/08/2017 25/08/2017 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Leader 

 

Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

  

n/a n/a n/a   

 

 

Page 30



Appendix 1

2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017
Month           

2017/2018
Total

Average 

Working Days 

to Respond

Number 

Outside 10 

Working Day 

Target

Percentage 

Responded in 

10 Working 

Days

9 9 13 8 10 April 5 8.4 2 60.0%

12 7 10 3 5 May 4 8.5 1 75.0%

12 9 14 7 16 June 8 6.9 2 75.0%

33 25 37 18 31 Quarter 1 17 7.7 5 70.6%

10 11 15 10 9 July 10 3.5 0 100.0%

10 7 9 16 16 August

8 14 14 18 4 September

28 32 38 44 29 Quarter 2 10 0 100.0%

4 12 9 15 4 October

8 13 9 9 14 November

2 6 7 13 5 December

14 31 25 37 23 Quarter 3 0 0

5 9 7 5 7 January

10 14 15 9 5 February

5 7 2 5 8 March

20 30 24 19 20 Quarter 4 0 0

95 118 124 118 103 Annual 27 6.2 5 81.5%

2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017
Month           

2017/2018
No

Average 

Working Days 

to Respond

Number 

Outside 10 

Working Day 

Target

Percentage 

Responded in 

10 Working 

Days

6 5 4 4 1 Quarter 1 5 8.0 1 80.0%

5 3 3 3 5 Quarter 2 3 7.3 1 66.7%

3 1 2 2 4 Quarter 3

1 4 1 1 5 Quarter 4

15 13 10 10 15 Annual 8 7.8 2 75.0%

2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017
Month           

2017/2018
No

Average 

Working Days 

to Respond

Number 

Outside 15 

Working Day 

Target

Percentage 

Responded in 

15 Working 

Days

6 0 4 4 1 Quarter 1 2 11.0 0 100.0%

5 3 3 3 1 Quarter 2 1 4.0 0 100.0%

2 0 4 4 3 Quarter 3

1 2 1 1 4 Quarter 4

14 5 12 12 9 Annual 3 8.7 0 100.0%

Stage 1 - Formal Complaints by Month

Stage 2 - Escalation to Assistant Director / Director by Quarter

Stage 3 - Escalation to Chief Executive by Quarter

Page 31



Appendix 2

No

Average 

Working Days 

to Respond

Number 

Outside 10 

Working Day 

Target

Percentage 

Responded in 

10 Working 

Days

13 6.5 3 76.9%

1 5 0 100.0%

5 6.2 1 80.0%

8 5.75 1 87.5%

Annual 27 6.2 5 81.5%

Total

Neighbou

rhood 

Services

Performance 

and 

Innovation

Resources
Strategic 

Development

15 3 0 4 8

0 0 0 0 0

10 9 1 0 0

2 1 0 1 0

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

27 13 1 5 8

Failure to carry out a service.

Staff behaviour (e.g. rude, unhelpful)

Customer Access

Work undertaken by our contractors 

Discrimination or bias

Failure to fulfil statutory obligations 

Stage 1 - Formal Complaints by Category

Complaint  Category

Complaint about any of the Council policies

Decision making and implementation 

Service standards or quality issues

Stage 1 - Formal Complaints by Assistant Director

Assistant Director

Neighbourhood Services

Performance and Innovation

Resources

Strategic Development

Page 32



Appendix 3

Date AD Compliment Details

03/04/2017 NS Thanks to caretakers at Kendal Town Hall

19/04/2017 NS Good service by recyling service

26/04/2017 NS Thank you for excellent service from Public Protection visit

04/05/2017 NS Thanks to recycing crew for collection a missed bin

04/05/2017 NS Thanks to recycing crew for collection a missed bin

09/05/2017 PI Thanks to customer services for "professional and patient" manner

11/05/2017 NS Appreciates efforts of recycling team for clearing up confusion

17/05/2017 NS Thanks to recycling crew

31/05/2017 NS "Kind and attentive" staff assisting with recycling collection

01/06/2017 NS Thanks to Town Hall staff for helping prepare for an event

02/06/2017 NS/PI Thanks to depot and contact centre staff for their professionalism

08/06/2017 PI Thank contact centre staff for directing Customer to correct organisation

19/06/2017 NS Thanks for support in the preparations for Staveley Carnival

05/07/2017 NS Thanks to crew helping with a recycling bin

11/07/2017 NS Thanks to Town Hall staff for Levens Choir concert

12/07/2017 PI Thank contact centre staff for directing Customer to correct organisation

13/07/2017 PI Thanks to contact centre for helpful advice and guidance

20/07/2017 NS Thanks to the Community and Leisure team for removing obscuring trees 

24/07/2017 PI Thanks to contact centre for sorting out an issue

31/07/2017 PI Thanks to recycing crew for collection a missed bin

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



  

South Lakeland District Council  
Standards Committee  

19 September 2017  
Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review  

2016/17  
  

PORTFOLIO:  Councillor Jonathan Brook – Deputy Leader and 
Housing and Innovation Portfolio Holder   

REPORT FROM:  Debbie Storr – Director of Policy and Resources 
(Monitoring Officer) 

REPORT AUTHOR:  Debbie Storr-   Director of Policy and Resources 
(Monitoring Officer) 
Caroline Metcalfe – Contact Centre Team Leader  

WARDS:  not applicable  

KEY DECISION NO:  not applicable  

  
1.0  EXPECTED OUTCOME  
1.1  This report is presented to receive the annual report of the Local Government 

Ombudsman for 2016/17.  
2.0  RECOMMENDATION  

2.1  It is recommended that the report be received.   
3.0  BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS  
3.1  Members will find attached to this report a copy of the Ombudsman’s Annual 

Review for 2016/17 (Appendix 1).   
3.2  The report appears on the Local Government Ombudsman Website and is 

available on the Council’s website.   
3.3  During the reporting period the Local Government Ombudsman made a 

decision in 10 cases (compared to 10 in 2015/16 and 17 in 2014/15) and of 
those that were investigated two were upheld. The two that were upheld were 
reported to Standards Committee in April 2017.  

3.4 The Council continues to work hard to resolve any complaints that do arise 
before any referral to the Ombudsman.  In terms of reporting, the Monitoring 
Officer reported on the two upheld at the 18 April meeting and through the 
Standards Committee Annual Report to Council and it is considered that this is 
an appropriate route. The reporting mechanism will be kept under review.   

Page 35

Item No.7



3.5  A summary of the decisions by service area is provided in Appendix 2. Members 
are asked to note the report. 

4.0  CONSULTATION  
4.1  None.   
5.0  ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS  
5.1  There are no alternative options – the report is to note.  
6.0      LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES  
6.1  Links to the Council’s priorities in relation to customer satisfaction. 
7.0  IMPLICATIONS  
7.1  Financial and Resources  
7.1.1  Not applicable.  

7.2  Human Resources  

7.2.1  Not applicable.  

7.3  Legal  
7.3.1  Not applicable.  

7.4  Social, Economic and Environmental  
7.4.1  Not applicable.  

7.5  Equality and Diversity  

7.5.1  Not applicable.  

7.6  Risk  
Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Reputational as a result 
of adverse ombudsman 
complaints  

Reputation of the 
council is diminished  

Regular review of 
complaints policy and 
handling of complaints.   

CONTACT OFFICERS  

Report Author – d.storr@southlakeland.gov.uk  
APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT   
Appendix No.    

1  Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review 2016/17  

2  Summary of Decisions made in 2016/2017  

 BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE  

Previous Reports to Standards Committee  
TRACKING INFORMATION  
Assistant 
Director  

Portfolio 
Holder  

Solicitor to the 
Council  

SMT  Scrutiny 
Committee  

 Y  Y  3.8.17 n/a  

Executive 
(Cabinet)  

Committee  Council  Section 151 
Officer  

Monitoring 
Officer  

n/a  19/09/17  n/a  Y  Author 

Page 36



20 July 2017 

By email 

Laurence Conway 
Chief Executive 
South Lakeland District Council 

Dear Laurence Conway, 

Annual Review letter 2017 

I write to you with our annual summary of statistics on the complaints made to the Local 
Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGO) about your authority for the year ended 31 
March 2017. The enclosed tables present the number of complaints and enquiries received 
about your authority and the decisions we made during the period. I hope this information 
will prove helpful in assessing your authority’s performance in handling complaints.  

The reporting year saw the retirement of Dr Jane Martin after completing her seven year 
tenure as Local Government Ombudsman. I was delighted to be appointed to the role of 
Ombudsman in January and look forward to working with you and colleagues across the 
local government sector in my new role. 

You may notice the inclusion of the ‘Social Care Ombudsman’ in our name and logo. You 
will be aware that since 2010 we have operated with jurisdiction over all registered adult 
social care providers, able to investigate complaints about care funded and arranged 
privately. The change is in response to frequent feedback from care providers who tell us 
that our current name is a real barrier to recognition within the social care sector. We hope 
this change will help to give this part of our jurisdiction the profile it deserves.   

Complaint statistics 

Last year, we provided for the first time statistics on how the complaints we upheld against 
your authority were remedied. This year’s letter, again, includes a breakdown of upheld 
complaints to show how they were remedied. This includes the number of cases where our 
recommendations remedied the fault and the number of cases where we decided your 
authority had offered a satisfactory remedy during the local complaints process. In these 
latter cases we provide reassurance that your authority had satisfactorily attempted to 
resolve the complaint before the person came to us.  

We have chosen not to include a ‘compliance rate’ this year; this indicated a council’s 
compliance with our recommendations to remedy a fault. From April 2016, we established a 
new mechanism for ensuring the recommendations we make to councils are implemented, 
where they are agreed to. This has meant the recommendations we make are more specific, 
and will often include a time-frame for completion. We will then follow up with a council and 
seek evidence that recommendations have been implemented. As a result of this new 
process, we plan to report a more sophisticated suite of information about compliance and 
service improvement in the future.  

This is likely to be just one of several changes we will make to our annual letters and the 
way we present our data to you in the future. We surveyed councils earlier in the year to find 
out, amongst other things, how they use the data in annual letters and what data is the most 
useful; thank you to those officers who responded. The feedback will inform new work to 

                                   APPENDIX 1

Page 37



provide you, your officers and elected members, and members of the public, with more 
meaningful data that allows for more effective scrutiny and easier comparison with other 
councils. We will keep in touch with you as this work progresses. 
 
I want to emphasise that the statistics in this letter comprise the data we hold, and may not 
necessarily align with the data your authority holds. For example, our numbers include 
enquiries from people we signpost back to the authority, but who may never contact you. 
 
In line with usual practice, we are publishing our annual data for all authorities on our 
website. The aim of this is to be transparent and provide information that aids the scrutiny of 
local services. 
 
The statutory duty to report Ombudsman findings and recommendations 

As you will no doubt be aware, there is duty under section 5(2) of the Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989 for your Monitoring Officer to prepare a formal report to the council where 
it appears that the authority, or any part of it, has acted or is likely to act in such a manner as 
to constitute maladministration or service failure, and where the LGO has conducted an 
investigation in relation to the matter. 

This requirement applies to all Ombudsman complaint decisions, not just those that result in 
a public report. It is therefore a significant statutory duty that is triggered in most authorities 
every year following findings of fault by my office. I have received several enquiries from 
authorities to ask how I expect this duty to be discharged. I thought it would therefore be 
useful for me to take this opportunity to comment on this responsibility.   

I am conscious that authorities have adopted different approaches to respond 
proportionately to the issues raised in different Ombudsman investigations in a way that best 
reflects their own local circumstances. I am comfortable with, and supportive of, a flexible 
approach to how this duty is discharged. I do not seek to impose a proscriptive approach, as 
long as the Parliamentary intent is fulfilled in some meaningful way and the authority’s 
performance in relation to Ombudsman investigations is properly communicated to elected 
members.   

As a general guide I would suggest: 

 Where my office has made findings of maladministration/fault in regard to routine 
mistakes and service failures, and the authority has agreed to remedy the complaint 
by implementing the recommendations made following an investigation, I feel that the 
duty is satisfactorily discharged if the Monitoring Officer makes a periodic report to 
the council summarising the findings on all upheld complaints over a specific period.  
In a small authority this may be adequately addressed through an annual report on 
complaints to members, for example.   

 Where an investigation has wider implications for council policy or exposes a more 
significant finding of maladministration, perhaps because of the scale of the fault or 
injustice, or the number of people affected, I would expect the Monitoring Officer to 
consider whether the implications of that investigation should be individually reported 
to members. 

 In the unlikely event that an authority is minded not to comply with my 
recommendations following a finding of maladministration, I would always expect the 
Monitoring Officer to report this to members under section five of the Act. This is an 
exceptional and unusual course of action for any authority to take and should be 
considered at the highest tier of the authority. 

Page 38



The duties set out above in relation to the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 are in 
addition to, not instead of, the pre-existing duties placed on all authorities in relation to 
Ombudsman reports under The Local Government Act 1974. Under those provisions, 
whenever my office issues a formal, public report to your authority you are obliged to lay that 
report before the council for consideration and respond within three months setting out the 
action that you have taken, or propose to take, in response to the report. 

I know that most local authorities are familiar with these arrangements, but I happy to 
discuss this further with you or your Monitoring Officer if there is any doubt about how to 
discharge these duties in future. 

Manual for Councils 
 
We greatly value our relationships with council Complaints Officers, our single contact points 
at each authority. To support them in their roles, we have published a Manual for Councils, 
setting out in detail what we do and how we investigate the complaints we receive. When we 
surveyed Complaints Officers, we were pleased to hear that 73% reported they have found 
the manual useful. 
 
The manual is a practical resource and reference point for all council staff, not just those 
working directly with us, and I encourage you to share it widely within your organisation. The 
manual can be found on our website www.lgo.org.uk/link-officers  
  
Complaint handling training 
 
Our training programme is one of the ways we use the outcomes of complaints to promote 
wider service improvements and learning. We delivered an ambitious programme of 75 
courses during the year, training over 800 council staff and more 400 care provider staff. 
Post-course surveys showed a 92% increase in delegates’ confidence in dealing with 
complaints. To find out more visit www.lgo.org.uk/training 
 
 
Yours sincerely 

 

 
 

Michael King 

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman for England  

Chair, Commission for Local Administration in England

Page 39

http://www.lgo.org.uk/link-officers
http://www.lgo.org.uk/training


Local Authority Report: South Lakeland District Council 
For the Period Ending: 31/03/2017 
 
For further information on how to interpret our statistics, please visit our website: 
http://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/annual-review-reports/interpreting-local-authority-statistics 
 
 

Complaints and enquiries received 
 

Adult Care 
Services 

Benefits and 
Tax 

Corporate 
and Other 
Services 

Education 
and 

Children’s 
Services 

Environment 
Services 

Highways 
and 

Transport 
Housing 

Planning and 
Development 

Other Total 

0 1 0 0 0 1 1 7 0 10 

 
 
 

Decisions made 
 

Detailed Investigations  

Incomplete or 
Invalid 

Advice Given 
Referred back 

for Local 
Resolution 

Closed After 
Initial 

Enquiries 
Not Upheld Upheld Uphold Rate Total 

1 0 3 3 1 2 67% 10 

Notes Complaints Remedied   

Our uphold rate is calculated in relation to the total number of detailed investigations. 
 

The number of remedied complaints may not equal the number of upheld complaints. 
This is because, while we may uphold a complaint because we find fault, we may not 
always find grounds to say that fault caused injustice that ought to be remedied. 

by LGO 
Satisfactorily by 

Authority before LGO 
Involvement 

  

1 0   

P
age 40

http://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/annual-review-reports/interpreting-local-authority-statistics


Reference Authority Category Decision Date Decision Remedy

1 15020093 South Lakeland District Council Environmental Services & Public Protection & Regulation 04-Apr-16 Referred back for local resolution Null

2 15020502 South Lakeland District Council Planning & Development 21-Sep-16 Not Upheld Null

3 16004018 South Lakeland District Council Planning & Development 21-Jul-16 Closed after initial enquiries Null

4 16004994 South Lakeland District Council Planning & Development 02-Nov-16 Upheld Procedure Change

5 16005696 South Lakeland District Council Benefits & Tax 20-Jul-16 Referred back for local resolution Null

6 16005914 South Lakeland District Council Highways & Transport 09-Aug-16 Incomplete/Invalid Null

7 16010827 South Lakeland District Council Planning & Development 25-Oct-16 Referred back for local resolution Null

8 16012906 South Lakeland District Council Planning & Development 31-Mar-17 Upheld Null

9 16013837 South Lakeland District Council Planning & Development 23-Jan-17 Closed after initial enquiries Null

10 16014772 South Lakeland District Council Planning & Development 09-Feb-17 Closed after initial enquiries Null

Decisions made in period (Apr 2016 - Mar 2017)

South Lakeland District Council                                                  APPENDIX 2

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 42



Reference Authority Category Received

1 16004018 South Lakeland District Council Planning & Development 21-Jun-16

2 16004994 South Lakeland District Council Planning & Development 07-Jul-16

3 16005696 South Lakeland District Council Benefits & Tax 20-Jul-16

4 16005914 South Lakeland District Council Highways & Transport 09-Aug-16

5 16010827 South Lakeland District Council Planning & Development 25-Oct-16

6 16012906 South Lakeland District Council Planning & Development 01-Dec-16

7 16013837 South Lakeland District Council Planning & Development 20-Dec-16

8 16014772 South Lakeland District Council Planning & Development 12-Jan-17

9 16018820 South Lakeland District Council Housing 21-Mar-17

10 16019143 South Lakeland District Council Planning & Development 24-Mar-17

Complaints Received  (Apr 2016 - Mar 2017)                                                   APPENDIX 2

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44



South Lakeland District Council 
Standards Committee 

19 September 2017 
Code of Conduct Complaints  

PORTFOLIO: Councillor Chris Hogg - Chair of Standards 
Committee 

REPORT FROM: Debbie Storr - Director of Policy and Resources 
(Monitoring Officer) 

REPORT AUTHOR: Debbie Storr - Director of Policy and Resources 
(Monitoring Officer) 

WARDS: not applicable 

KEY DECISION NO: not applicable 

 
1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 
1.1 That the Committee notes the report of the Monitoring Officer with regards to 

complaints under the Council’s Standards Arrangements from 1 April 2017.  
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
2.1 Members are asked to note the report. 
3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 
3.1 Under the Council’s Standards Arrangements the Monitoring Officer reviews 

any complaint received about District or Parish/Town Councillors in respect of 
the Members’ code of conduct and, after consultation with the Independent 
Person, takes a decision as to whether it merits formal investigation. 

3.2 Members were last updated in April 2017. At the date of writing this report, 
whilst there have been some enquiries with regards to parish matters there is 
no ongoing action being taken. 

3.3 Communication has been received from three separate members of the public 
in respect of three separate Parish matters with regards to allegations of failure 
to declare interests.  In one the Parish Council has reviewed how it deals with 
planning consultations and was to contact CALC to discuss best practice and 
future training. In another the MO and the Independent Person met with the 
complainant to discuss an alleged failure to declare an interest, and possible 
options and in the third a Parish Council has ensured that its members have 
reviewed and updated their register of interests.  

3.4 Members are asked to note the report. 
4.0 CONSULTATION 
4.1 Not applicable – the report is to note. 

Page 45

Item No.8



5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
5.1 There are no alternative options, the report is to note.  
6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 
6.1 Good governance underpins the Council’s achievements of its Council Plan 

priorities and objectives.  
7.0 IMPLICATIONS 
7.1 Financial and Resources 
7.1.1 There are no additional financial resource implications.  
7.2 Human Resources 
7.2.1 Not applicable. 
7.3 Legal 
7.3.1 The Council is required to ensure it accords with the requirements of the 

Localism Act 2011.   
7.3.2 The Council has adopted Standards arrangements within which any 

complaints against Members are considered.  There are no issues to raise in 
this report.   

7.4 Social, Economic and Environmental 
7.4.1 Not applicable.  
7.5 Equality and Diversity 
7.5.1 There are no equality issues to raise.  
7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 
That the Council fails to 
comply with the 
requirements of the 
Localism Act 2011 

Challenge to the 
Council’s governance 
arrangements 

Ensure appropriate 
arrangements are in 
place to ensure 
compliance with the 
legislation. 

 
CONTACT OFFICERS 
Report Author – d.storr@southlakeland.gov.uk 
 
APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT 

Appendix No.  

 NONE 

Page 46



 
 
TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

 4.8.17 4.8.17 n/a n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 19.9.17 n/a 4.8.17 author 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Leader 
 

Ward 
Councillor(s) 
 

  

n/a n/a n/a   

 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

Standards Committee 

19 September 2017 

 Register of Disclosable Pecuniary and Other 
Interests  

 

PORTFOLIO: Councillor Brenda Gray – Council Organisation and 
People Portfolio Holder  

REPORT FROM: Debbie Storr - Director of Policy and Resources 
(Monitoring Officer) 

REPORT AUTHOR: Debbie Storr - Director of Policy and Resources 
(Monitoring Officer) 

WARDS: not applicable 

KEY DECISION NO: not applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 This report is presented to review the register of disclosable pecuniary and 
other interests for District Council Members and co-optees for the period to 
September 2017. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that the Committee note and review the Member 
register of interests 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 Under the Localism Act 2011 members are required to disclose those 
disclosable pecuniary interests as specified in regulations and any other 
interests which the Council has decided should be registered in the Interests 
form.  

3.2 Council resolved on 19 June 2012 to adopt the other registrable interests as 
detailed in the register of interests form, and the Monitoring Officer is required 
to maintain the register and ensure that it is available for inspection, as 
required by the Act, which also includes being available on the Council’s 
website. When looking at Councillor details on the website there are links to 
the register of interests forms.  

3.3 There was one district by-election in May and the new member has completed 
a register form.  All members have been reminded to ensure that their 
registers are up to date. Code of conduct training was also provided which 
was also offered to existing members and parish councillors.   

Page 49

Item No.9



 

 

3.4 The Registers will be available at the meeting. 

 

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 Not applicable.  

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 There are no alternative options.  The annual review is part of the 
Committee’s work programme. 

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 Links to the Council’s values of being open and transparent. 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 Not applicable 

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 No issues identified 

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 Members are required to ensure that they comply with the code of conduct 
and declare their disclosable pecuniary interests as appropriate.  Failure to 
comply with the legislation with regard to disclosure and participation at 
meetings on disclosable pecuniary interests is a criminal offence.  

7.4 Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4.1 Not applicable. 

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1 Not applicable. 

7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Registers not 
maintained or 
incomplete 

Members could be in 
breach of the 
code/legislation 

Regular monitoring of 
code and sufficient 
awareness and training 

Members fail to make 
appropriate declarations 

Risk of prosecution for 
failing to declare or 
participating in 
proceedings where they 
have a DPI 

Ensure appropriate 
declarations are made 
and registers up to date 
and training provided 

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author – d.storr@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Page 50



 

 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix No.  

 None 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

None 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

 31.7.17 17.7.17 17.7.17 n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 19/9/17 n/a 17.7.17 author 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Leader 

 

Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

  

n/a n/a n/a   

 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 52



 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

Standards Committee 

19 September 2017 

 Parish Registers  

 

PORTFOLIO: Councillor Brenda Gray – Council Organisation and 
People Portfolio Holder  

REPORT FROM: Debbie Storr - Director of Policy and Resources 
(Monitoring Officer) 

REPORT AUTHOR: Debbie Storr - Director of Policy and Resources 
(Monitoring Officer) 

WARDS: not applicable 

KEY DECISION NO: not applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 This report is presented to review the register of disclosable pecuniary and 
other interests for Parish Councillors for the period to September 2017. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that the Committee note and review the Parish 
register of interests 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 Under the Localism Act 2011 Parish/Town Councillors are required to disclose 
those disclosable pecuniary interests as specified in regulations and any other 
interests which their local council has decided should also be registered on 
the Interests form.  

3.2 Council at its meeting on 19 June 2012 encouraged Parish/Town Councils to 
adopt the District code, and the majority of Parishes/Town within the District 
have done this, and have also adopted the same “other registrable interests”.    

3.3 As with the District Council the Monitoring Officer is required to maintain the 
register and ensure that it is available for inspection, as required by the Act, 
which also includes being available on the Council’s website. Parish/Town 
Councils must also ensure that the interests appear on their Parish/Town 
Council website if they have one. 

3.4 Since 2017 was County Council election year there were no Parish Council 
elections in May.  On 7 September 2017 there were by-elections held for 
Ulverston Town Council and Burneside Parish Council.  The new Parish/Town 
Council Members have been requested to complete a register form, and all 

Page 53

Item No.10



 

 

Parish Councils have been reminded to ensure that their members’ registers 
are up to date. An update will be provided at the meeting.  

3.5 Members are asked to note the review of the parish registers.  

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 Not applicable.  

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 There are no alternative options.  The annual review is part of the 
Committee’s work programme. 

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 Links to the Council’s values of being open and transparent. 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 Not applicable 

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 No issues identified 

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 Parish/Town Councillors are required to ensure that they comply with the 
code of conduct and declare their disclosable pecuniary interests as 
appropriate.  Failure to comply with the legislation with regard to disclosure 
and participation at meetings on disclosable pecuniary interests is a criminal 
offence.  

7.4 Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4.1 Not applicable. 

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1 Not applicable. 

7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Registers not 
maintained or 
incomplete 

Members could be in 
breach of the 
code/legislation 

Regular monitoring of 
code and sufficient 
awareness and training 

Members fail to make 
appropriate declarations 

Risk of prosecution for 
failing to declare or 
participating in 
proceedings where they 
have a DPI 

Ensure appropriate 
declarations are made 
and registers up to date 
and training provided 

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author – d.storr@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Page 54



 

 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix No. None 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

None 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

 31.7.17   n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 19/9/17 n/a  author 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Leader 

 

Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

  

 n/a n/a   

 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56



 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

Standards Committee 

19 September 2017 

Employee Register of Interests and Gifts and 
Hospitality 

 

PORTFOLIO: Councillor Brenda Gray – Council Organisation and 
People Portfolio Holder  

REPORT FROM: Debbie Storr - Director of Policy and Resources 
(Monitoring Officer) 

REPORT AUTHOR: Debbie Storr - Director of Policy and Resources 
(Monitoring Officer) 

WARDS: not applicable 

KEY DECISION NO: not applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 This report is presented to review the register of interests and gifts and 
hospitality for employees for the period September 2016 to September 2017. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that the Committee notes the report 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 Under the Code of Conduct for South Lakeland District Council Employees, 
Officers are required to give declarations of interest and gifts and hospitality 
as detailed therein.  A copy of the Code of Conduct can be found in the 
Council’s constitution (page 186).  

3.2 There is a standard corporate form and offers of hospitality that are declined 
should also be included in any declarations.   

3.3 The Standards Committee has an overview of the Employee Register and is 
requested to review it annually. It was last reviewed in September 2016. 

3.4 The code requires members of staff to notify the Monitoring Officer of all gifts 
and hospitality which they have received where the value is £25 or where any 
gift or hospitality in connection with their duties is declined.  

Page 57

Item No.11



 

 

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 Directorates have been asked to confirm that the register of interests, etc. is 
up to date.  In the last twelve months, no significant gifts or hospitality has 
been received, and the Monitoring Officer has requested an update of any 
formal declarations. An update will be provided at the meeting.  

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 There are no alternative options.  The annual review is part of the 
Committee’s work programme. 

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 Links to the Council’s values of being open and transparent. 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 Not applicable 

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 No issues identified 

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 Officers are required under the code of conduct to declare appropriate 
interests. 

7.4 Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4.1 Not applicable. 

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1 Not applicable. 

7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Registers not 
maintained or 
incomplete 

Officers could be in 
breach of code of 
conduct 

Regular monitoring of 
code and sufficient 
awareness and training 

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author – d.storr@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix No.  

 None 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

None 

Page 58



 

 

 

 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

 31.7.17 18.7.17 18.7.17 n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 19.9.17 n/a 18.7.17 author 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Leader 

 

Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

  

18.7.17 n/a n/a   

 

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 60



Standards Committee Work Programme - Updated April 2017 

Topic Jun-17 Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18 May-18 

Milestones/  

Targets/Comments 

Standards Committee Training for new Members of Standards 

Committee and refresher training offered to existing members 

            Scheduled for 19 September 2017 

Newly Elected District Councillors Induction  

Training 

                   25 June and 5 July 2017 

Review of Website Details             Ongoing during the year 

Refresher Code of Conduct Training for  

District Councillors  

            May 2017 by the end of September 2017 - Offered to existing and 

newly elected Councillors 

Refresher Code of Conduct Training for  

Parish Councillors 

            14 June 2017 was offered to existing and newly elected 

Councillors.  

Inspect Registers of Interests for District and  

Parish Councillors 

            On agenda for 19 September  

2017 

Review Register of Interests & Gifts &  

Hospitality for Employees 

            On agenda for 19 September  

2017 

Consider and adjudicate Dispensation  

Requests 

            As required by date of next meeting 

Conduct twice yearly review of Complaints handling and 

Ombudsman reports 

                    Complaints and Ombudsman report on agenda for 19 September 

2017 

Receive Annual Ombudsman Report from the LGO             On agenda for 19 September 2017 

Review of Members/Officer  Protocols                

 

 Employee code reviewed in June 2013. Planning Protocol 

considered March 2016. Any additional refresh will be considered 

during the Constitutional review 

Protocol on Good Practice in Licensing for Members           
 

 On Agenda for 19 September 2017 

Publicise Role and Work of Standards  

Committee, and the Effectiveness of Standards Committee   

through the Annual Report to full Council 

            Ongoing 

Reports from the Monitoring Officer on  

Investigations 

            As required – updates received at Committee 

Prepare Annual Report for Full Council             17 April 2018 

Continue to raise the profile of the  

Standards Committee with Parish and Town Councils 

 
 

          Parish Co-optees on Committee 

Review of Dispensations             To be completed by April 2018 meeting 

  

Standards Committee Work Programme - April 2017 - May 2018 

P
age 61

Item
 N

o.12



 

P
age 62


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Protocol on Good Practice in Licensing for Members
	Protocol on Good Practice in Licensing for Members - Appendix 1
	Protocol on Good Practice in Licensing for Members - Appendix 2

	6 Compliments, Customer Feedback and Complaints received from April 2017 to July 2017
	Compliments, Customer Feedback and Complaints received from April 2017 to July 2017 - Appendices 1, 2 and 3

	7 Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review 2016-17
	1.0  EXPECTED OUTCOME
	3.0  BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS
	7.6  Risk
	APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT
	TRACKING INFORMATION
	Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review 2016-17 - Appendix 1 - Letter
	Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review 2016-17 - Appendix 2 - Complaints Decided
	Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review 2016-17 - Appendix 2 - Complaints Received

	8 Code of Conduct Complaints
	9 Register of Disclosable Pecuniary and Other Interests
	10 Parish Registers
	11 Employee Register of Interests and Gifts and Hospitality
	12 Standards Committee Work Programme

